
QUARRY  
COMMUNITY DEVELOPMENT DISTRICT 

MARCH 11, 2024 

AGENDA PACKAGE 

210 N. UNIVERSITY DRIVE, SUITE 702 
CORAL SPRINGS, FLORIDA 33071 

Agenda Page 1



Quarry Community Development District 
Board of Supervisors District Staff 
Seat 1, Vacant  Justin Faircloth, District Manager 
Dean Britt, Vice Chairperson Wes Haber, District Counsel 
William Patrick, Assistant Secretary Albert Lopez, District Engineer 
Mel Stuckey, Assistant Secretary 
Rick Fingeret, Assistant Secretary 

 
Meeting Agenda 

Monday March 11, 2024 at 1:00 p.m. 
Quarry Beach Club  

8975 Kayak Drive, Naples, Florida 34120 
 

Call in meeting number: 1-646-838-1601, Meeting ID: 951-092-195# 
 

 

1. Call to Order 
2. Pledge of Allegiance 
3. Approval of Agenda 
4. Public Comments on Agenda Items 

5. Organizational Matters 
A. Appointment of Supervisor to Fill an Unexpired Term of Office  

(Seat 1, Expiring 11/2024) 
i.  Thel Thomas Whitley, Jr. Resume Consideration 

B. Oath of Office for Newly Appointed Supervisor 
C. Designation of Officers Resolution 2024-01 

6. District Manager’s Report 
A. Approval of the February 12, 2024 Minutes 
B. Acceptance of the Financial Report, and Approval of the Check Register and Invoices as of January 2024 
C. Follow-up Items 

i. Preserve Signage Proposals 

7. Engineer’s Report 
A. Glase Golf Update 

i. Phase I Project & Phase II Project Closures 
B. Future Lake Bank Repairs CPH Design Proposal Updated 
C. Joint Variance Application – 9381, 9385, & 9389 Copper Canyon Court - Update 
D. 9059 Graphite Circle Variance Application  
E. 9405 Copper Canyon Court Pool & Lanai Application Review 
F. 9397 Copper Canyon Court Resident Drainage Concern Received 
G. US Bank Completion Certificate Inquiry & Response  

8. Old Business  

Agenda Page 2



Quarry CDD 
March 11, 2024 Agenda 
Page 2 
 
 

District Office  Meeting Location 
Inframark, Community Management Services  Quarry Beach Club 
210 North University Drive, Suite 702  8975 Kayak Drive 
Coral Springs, Florida 33071  Naples, Florida 34120 
(954) 603-0033   

www.quarrycdd.org 

9. New Business 

10. Attorney’s Report 
A. Revisions to Stormwater Rules Resolution & QCA Agreement Discussion 

11. Supervisor Requests 

12. Chairperson’s Comments 
13. Audience Comments 
14. Adjournment 

Next meeting: Monday April 8, 2024 at 1:00 p.m. 
 
 

Agenda Page 3

http://www.quarrycdd.org/


Fifth Order of Business

Agenda Page 4



 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

5Ai. 
  

Agenda Page 5



Agenda Page 6



 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

5C 

Agenda Page 7



RESOLUTION 2024-01 

A RESOLUTION OF QUARRY COMMUNITY 
DEVELOPMENT DISTRICT APPOINTING OFFICERS OF 
THE BOARD OF SUPERVISORS 

WHEREAS, the Board of Supervisors of Quarry Community Development District at a 
regular business meeting, held on March 11, 2024, following the resignation of Supervisor 
Cantwell, desires to appoint the below recited persons to the offices specified. 

NOW, THEREFORE, BE IT RESOLVED BY THE BOARD 
OF SUPERVISORS OF QUARRY COMMUNITY 
DEVELOPMENT DISTRICT: 

1. The following persons were appointed to the offices shown, to wit:

Justin Faircloth 

Stephen Bloom 

Chairperson 

Vice Chairperson 

Secretary 

Treasurer 

Assistant Treasurer 

Assistant Secretary 

Assistant Secretary 

Assistant Secretary 

PASSED AND ADOPTED THIS, 11th DAY OF MARCH, 2024 

_____________________________________ 

Chairperson 

_____________________________________ 
Justin Faircloth 
Secretary 

Agenda Page 8



Sixth Order of Business 

Agenda Page 9



 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

6A 

Agenda Page 10



Unapproved Minutes 

MINUTES OF MEETING 1 

QUARRY 2 

COMMUNITY DEVELOPMENT DISTRICT 3 

 4 

 5 

 The regular meeting of the Board of Supervisors of the Quarry Community Development 6 

District was held Monday, February 12, 2024 at 1:00 p.m. at the Quarry Beach Club, located at 7 

8975 Kayak Drive, Naples, Florida 34120. 8 

 9 

 10 

 Present and constituting a quorum were: 11 

 12 

 Dean Britt     Vice Chairperson 13 

 William Patrick    Assistant Secretary 14 

 Mel Stuckey     Assistant Secretary 15 

 Rick Fingeret     Assistant Secretary 16 

 17 

 Also present were: 18 

 19 

 Justin Faircloth    District Manager 20 

 Wes Haber     District Counsel 21 

 Albert Lopez     District Engineer 22 

 Jacob Whitlock    Assistant District Manager 23 

 Scott Garvin     QCA 24 

 Mark Puthoff     QCA 25 

 Will Elliott     Collier Environmental 26 

 Jeremy Hardin     Collier Environmental 27 

 James Glase      Glase Golf 28 

 Various Residents 29 

 30 

 31 

 Following is a summary of the discussions and actions taken. 32 

 33 

 34 

FIRST ORDER OF BUSINESS   Call to Order 35 

 Mr. Faircloth called the meeting to order and called the roll. A quorum was established. 36 

 37 

SECOND ORDER OF BUSINESS   Pledge of Allegiance 38 

 The Pledge of Allegiance was recited. 39 

 40 

  41 

Agenda Page 11



February 12, 2024 Meeting   Quarry CDD 

2 
Unapproved Minutes 

THIRD ORDER OF BUSINESS   Approval of Agenda 42 

• Mr. Faircloth noted that the January 8, 2024 Minutes should reflect that Mr. 43 

Cantwell was present in person, and not via phone. 44 

There being no further amendments, 45 

 46 

On MOTION by Mr. Patrick, seconded by Mr. Fingeret, with all in 47 

favor, the Agenda was approved as per the amendment made to the 48 

January 8, 2024 Minutes. (4-0) 49 

 50 

 51 

FOURTH ORDER OF BUSINESS   Public Comments on Agenda Items 52 

 Hearing no comments from the public, the next order of business followed. 53 

 54 

FIFTH ORDER OF BUSINESS   Organizational Matters 55 

A. Acceptance of Timothy Cantwell Resignation and Declaration of Seat 1 Vacant 56 

 57 

 58 

On MOTION by Mr. Britt, seconded by Mr. Stuckey, with all in 59 

favor, the resignation of Mr. Timothy Cantwell was accepted, and 60 

Seat 1 was declared vacant (4-0) 61 

 62 

B. Appointment of Supervisor to Fill an Unexpired Term of Office (Seat 1, 63 

Expiring 11/2024) 64 

C. Oath of Office for Newly Appointed Supervisor 65 

D. Designation of Officers, Resolution 2024-01 66 

These items were tabled to the next meeting. 67 

 68 

SIXTH ORDER OF BUSINESS   District Manager’s Report 69 

A. Approval of the January 8, 2024 Minutes 70 

Mr. Faircloth presented the Minutes of the January 8, 2024 Meeting, and requested any 71 

further additions, corrections or deletions. 72 

There being none, 73 

 74 

On MOTION by Mr. Patrick, seconded by Mr. Fingeret, with all in 75 

favor, the Minutes of the January 8, 2024 Meeting were approved, 76 

as amended earlier in the meeting. (4-0) 77 

 78 

  79 

Agenda Page 12



February 12, 2024 Meeting   Quarry CDD 

3 
Unapproved Minutes 

B. Acceptance of the Financial Report, and Approval of the Check Register as of 80 

December 2023 81 

• Mr. Faircloth noted staff made changes requested by Mr. Fingeret to the Financial 82 

Report. Mr. Fingeret noted the responses received from staff and changes to the 83 

report were acceptable. 84 

There being no further discussion, 85 

 86 

On MOTION by Mr. Fingeret, seconded by Mr. Britt, with all in 87 

favor, the Financial Report as of December 2023 was accepted, and 88 

the Check Register as of December 2023 was approved, as 89 

presented. (4-0) 90 

 91 

C. Follow-up Items 92 

i. Preserve Signage Discussion 93 

• The Board requested staff obtain pricing for preserve signage, 20 existing signs and 94 

20 new signs with the additional language following in one-inch letters, “This 95 

property has been designated as CONSERVATION by the South Florida Water 96 

Management District and the Army Corps. Of Engineers. NO Hiking, Hunting, 97 

Fishing, Shooting, Motor Vehicles, Dumping, or Loitering by Order of Quarry 98 

CDD.” 99 

ii. March Meeting Discussion 100 

• Mr. Faircloth noted he would be on vacation for the March meeting, and inquired 101 

whether the Board wanted to reschedule the meeting, or if they would like to keep 102 

it as scheduled and have Mr. Whitlock manage the meeting. The Board concurred 103 

to have Mr. Whitlock manage the March meeting as scheduled. 104 

iii. Remote Meeting Discussion 105 

• Mr. Faircloth noted at the last meeting the possibility of adding remote meeting 106 

options for others to attend the meeting remotely, as mentioned by a resident. Upon 107 

further discussion, the Board tabled this item indefinitely. 108 

 109 

SEVENTH ORDER OF BUSINESS  Engineer’s Report 110 

 Mr. Lopez reviewed his report with the Board. 111 

A. Glase Golf Update 112 

i. Phase I Project & Phase II Project Closures 113 

• Mr. Faircloth and Mr. Lopez noted their findings on the documents submitted by 114 

Glase Golf. Mr. Faircloth noted that various MJS Golf Services invoices were 115 

Agenda Page 13



February 12, 2024 Meeting   Quarry CDD 

4 
Unapproved Minutes 

shorted during the project due to contract and Board limitations, and inquired about 116 

the outstanding balances MJS Golf Services reported on their February 1, 2024 117 

statement as $18,123.41. 118 

• Mr. Glase noted there would be no further trucking/fill/fuel surcharges forthcoming 119 

from Glase Golf, and that they would work out any differences with MJS Golf 120 

Services directly. 121 

 122 

On MOTION by Mr. Fingeret, seconded by Mr. Britt, with all in 123 

favor, Phase I Change Order 3 and Phase II Change Orders 5 & 6 124 

were approved. (4-0) 125 

 126 

1. Floating Pipes Discussion 127 

• Mr. Lopez addressed floating pipes in the lake and noted that warranty work will 128 

be addressed with the vendor. 129 

2. Glase Golf 2/1/24 Email 130 

a. Phase I Change Order 3 131 

b. Phase II Change Order 5 (REV) 132 

c. Phase II Change Order 6 133 

d. MJS Invoices for Change Order 134 

• These items were discussed earlier in the meeting. 135 

B. Future Lake Bank Repairs  CPH Design Proposal 136 

• The Board reviewed the proposal from CPH, and Mr. Lopez answered questions.  137 

• The Board requested Mr. Lopez revise the proposal and present again at the next 138 

meeting. 139 

C. Joint Variance Application – 9381, 9385 & 9389 Copper Canyon Court 140 

• Discussion ensued on the Joint Variance Application. The Board noted that the 141 

District needed to be provided with additional information to review in order to 142 

make a decision on the request. 143 

i. Joint Application Fee Structure Discussion 144 

• The Board concurred to allow residents to apply for the variance, divide the $500 145 

review fee, and not charge the review fee per lot being reviewed. 146 

 147 

EIGHTH ORDER OF BUSINESS   Old Business 148 

A. Preserve Maintenance Discussion 149 

• Mr. Will Elliott and Mr. Jeremy Hardin discussed recent work completed by CES 150 

in the preserves and lakes. Plantings in Lake 53 were discussed. 151 

Agenda Page 14



February 12, 2024 Meeting   Quarry CDD 

5 
Unapproved Minutes 

NINTH ORDER OF BUSINESS   New Business 152 

 There being no new business, the next order of business followed. 153 

 154 

TENTH ORDER OF BUSINESS   Attorney’s Report 155 

 The record shall reflect Mr. Fingeret exited the meeting. 156 

A. Ethics Training Discussion 157 

• Mr. Haber noted the need for the ethics training requirement for the Board by 158 

December 31st going forward each year. 159 

B. Form 1 Electronic Filing Update 160 

• Mr. Haber noted that Form 1 has to be filed electronically going forward. 161 

C. Revisions to Stormwater Rules & QCA Agreement Discussion 162 

• Mr. Haber noted he would have a Resolution for the Board to consider at the next 163 

meeting. 164 

 165 

ELEVENTH ORDER OF BUSINESS  Supervisor Requests 166 

TWELFTH ORDER OF BUSINESS  Chairman’s Comments 167 

 Hearing no requests or comments, the next order of business followed. 168 

 169 

THIRTEENTH ORDER OF BUSINESS  Audience Comments 170 

• Mr. Garvin introduced the new Community Association Manager for the 171 

community, Mr. Mark Puthoff. 172 

 173 

FOURTEENTH ORDER OF BUSINESS   Adjournment 174 

 There being no further business, 175 

 176 

On MOTION by Mr. Stuckey, seconded by Mr. Patrick, with all in 177 

favor, the meeting was adjourned at 2:58 p.m. (3-0) 178 

 179 

 180 

 181 

 182 

       ___________________________________ 183 

       Dean Britt 184 

       Vice Chairperson 185 

Agenda Page 15



 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

6B. 
  

Agenda Page 16



 Quarry

Community Development District

Financial Report

October 1, 2023 - January 31, 2024

Agenda Page 17



QUARRY
Community Development District

FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

Balance Sheet - All Funds ………………………………………………….Page 1

Statement of Revenues, Expenditures and Changes in Fund Balance

General Fund ………………………………………………….Pages 2 - 3

204-Series 2020 Debt Service Fund ………………………………………………….Page 4 

304-Series 2020 Capital Projects Fund ………………………………………………….Page 5

Trend Report - General Fund ………………………………………………….Pages 6 - 7

Notes to the Financial Statements ………………………………………………….Page 8

SUPPORTING SCHEDULES

Special Assessments - Collection Schedule(s) ………………………………………………….Page 9

Cash and Investment Report ………………………………………………….Page 10

Bank Reconciliation ………………………………………………….Page 11

Series 2020 (FEMA Project) ………………………………………………….Pages 12 - 14

Payment Register by Bank Account ………………………………………………….Page 15

Table of Contents

Agenda Page 18



Quarry

Community Development District

Financial Statements

(Unaudited)

October 1, 2023 - January 31, 2024

Agenda Page 19



QUARRY

Community Development District

Balance Sheet
January 31, 2024

Governmental Funds

ACCOUNT DESCRIPTION

GENERAL 

FUND

204 - SERIES 

2020 DEBT 

SERVICE 

FUND

304 -SERIES 

2020 CAPITAL 

PROJECTS 

FUND TOTAL

ASSETS

Cash - Checking Account 1,511,531$     -$                    -$                    1,511,531$     

Accounts Receivable 28,730 - - 28,730

Allow -Doubtful Accounts (8) (27) - (35)

Assessments Receivable 8 27 - 35

Due From Other Funds - 714,952 - 714,952

Investments:

Money Market Account 946,108 - - 946,108

Other Investments:

Construction Fund - - 2,099,803 2,099,803

Revenue Fund - 1,017,128 - 1,017,128

TOTAL ASSETS 2,486,369$     1,732,080$     2,099,803$     6,318,252$     

LIABILITIES

Accounts Payable 19,972$          -$                    -$                    19,972$          

Accrued Expenses 99,774 - - 99,774

Contracts Payable - - 728,037 728,037

Due To Other Funds 714,952 - - 714,952

TOTAL LIABILITIES 834,698 - 728,037 1,562,735

FUND BALANCES

Restricted for:

Debt Service - 1,732,080 - 1,732,080

Capital Projects - - 1,371,766 1,371,766

Assigned to:

Operating Reserves 173,858 - - 173,858

Reserves - Other 150,000 - - 150,000

Unassigned: 1,327,813 - - 1,327,813

TOTAL FUND BALANCES 1,651,671$     1,732,080$     1,371,766$     4,755,517$     

TOTAL LIABILITIES & FUND BALANCES 2,486,369$     1,732,080$     2,099,803$     6,318,252$     

Page 1

Agenda Page 20



QUARRY

Community Development District
General Fund

ANNUAL YTD ACTUAL

ADOPTED YEAR TO DATE AS A % OF JAN-24

ACCOUNT DESCRIPTION BUDGET ACTUAL ADOPTED BUD ACTUAL

REVENUES

Interest - Investments 4,000$             36,341$             908.53% 13,314$           

Golf Course Revenue 114,945 57,459 49.99% 28,730

Interest - Tax Collector - 1,900 0.00% 1,900

Special Assmnts- Tax Collector 814,044 751,516 92.32% 24,973

Special Assmnts- Discounts (32,562) (29,617) 90.96% (749)

Other Miscellaneous Revenues - 44,000 0.00% 500

TOTAL REVENUES 900,427 861,599 95.69% 68,668

EXPENDITURES

Administration

P/R-Board of Supervisors 12,000 3,400 28.33% 800

FICA Taxes 918 260 28.32% 61

ProfServ-Arbitrage Rebate 600 1,800 300.00% -

ProfServ-Engineering 45,000 - 0.00% -

ProfServ-Legal Services 21,000 2,515 11.98% 1,891

ProfServ-Legal Litigation 25,000 1,188 4.75% -

ProfServ-Mgmt Consulting 62,285 20,762 33.33% 5,190

ProfServ-Property Appraiser 34,294 8,851 25.81% -

ProfServ-Trustee Fees 4,041 - 0.00% -

Auditing Services 5,500 - 0.00% -

Website Compliance 1,553 776 49.97% 388

Postage and Freight 600 266 44.33% 5

Insurance - General Liability 6,246 6,949 111.26% -

Printing and Binding 500 - 0.00% -

Legal Advertising 4,000 - 0.00% -

Miscellaneous Services 2,000 - 0.00% -

Misc-Bank Charges 498 - 0.00% -

Misc-Special Projects 21,547 - 0.00% -

Misc-Assessment Collection Cost 16,281 14,438 88.68% 484

Misc-Contingency 1,000 2,426 242.60% 153

Office Supplies 250 - 0.00% -

Annual District Filing Fee 175 175 100.00% -

Total Administration 265,288 63,806 24.05% 8,972

Statement of Revenues, Expenditures and Changes in Fund Balances

For the Period Ending January 31, 2024

Page 2

Agenda Page 21



QUARRY

Community Development District
General Fund

ANNUAL YTD ACTUAL

ADOPTED YEAR TO DATE AS A % OF JAN-24

ACCOUNT DESCRIPTION BUDGET ACTUAL ADOPTED BUD ACTUAL

Statement of Revenues, Expenditures and Changes in Fund Balances

For the Period Ending January 31, 2024

Field

ProfServ-Field Management 5,305 1,768 33.33% 442

Contracts-Preserve Maintenance 103,830 25,958 25.00% -

Contracts - Lake Maintenance 65,004 21,668 33.33% 5,417

R&M-General 70,000 50 0.07% -

R&M-Fence 2,500 - 0.00% -

R&M-Lake 154,930 - 0.00% -

R&M-Weed Harvesting 75,000 18,225 24.30% 4,745

Miscellaneous Maintenance 3,670 - 0.00% -

Water Quality Testing 29,900 - 0.00% -

Capital Projects 75,000 - 0.00% -

Total Field 585,139 67,669 11.56% 10,604

Reserves

Reserve - Other 50,000 - 0.00% -

Total Reserves 50,000 - 0.00% -

TOTAL EXPENDITURES & RESERVES 900,427 131,475 14.60% 19,576

Excess (deficiency) of revenues

Over (under) expenditures - 730,124 0.00% 49,092

Net change in fund balance -$                    730,124$           0.00% 49,092$           

FUND BALANCE, BEGINNING (OCT 1, 2023) 921,547 921,547

FUND BALANCE, ENDING 921,547$         1,651,671$         

Page 3

Agenda Page 22



QUARRY

Community Development District
204 - Series 2020 Debt Service Fund

ANNUAL YTD ACTUAL

ADOPTED YEAR TO DATE AS A % OF JAN-24

ACCOUNT DESCRIPTION BUDGET ACTUAL ADOPTED BUD ACTUAL

REVENUES

Interest - Investments -$                    8,856$               0.00% 1,950$             

Special Assmnts- Tax Collector 1,472,226 1,359,139 92.32% 45,164

Special Assmnts- Discounts (58,889) (53,564) 90.96% (1,355)

TOTAL REVENUES 1,413,337 1,314,431 93.00% 45,759

EXPENDITURES

Administration

Misc-Assessment Collection Cost 29,445 26,112 88.68% 876

Total Administration 29,445 26,112 88.68% 876

Debt Service

Principal Debt Retirement 1,107,000 - 0.00% -

Interest Expense 264,248 132,124 50.00% -

Total Debt Service 1,371,248 132,124 9.64% -

TOTAL EXPENDITURES 1,400,693 158,236 11.30% 876

Excess (deficiency) of revenues

Over (under) expenditures 12,644 1,156,195 n/a 44,883

OTHER FINANCING SOURCES (USES)

Contribution to (Use of) Fund Balance 12,644 - 0.00% -

TOTAL FINANCING SOURCES (USES) 12,644 - 0.00% -

Net change in fund balance 12,644$           1,156,195$         n/a 44,883$           

FUND BALANCE, BEGINNING (OCT 1, 2023) 575,885 575,885

FUND BALANCE, ENDING 588,529$         1,732,080$         

Statement of Revenues, Expenditures and Changes in Fund Balances

For the Period Ending January 31, 2024

Page 4

Agenda Page 23



QUARRY

Community Development District
304 -Series 2020 Capital Projects Fund

ANNUAL YTD ACTUAL

ADOPTED YEAR TO DATE AS A % OF JAN-24

ACCOUNT DESCRIPTION BUDGET ACTUAL ADOPTED BUD ACTUAL

REVENUES

Interest - Investments -$                    40,658$             0.00% 14,449$           

TOTAL REVENUES - 40,658 0.00% 14,449

EXPENDITURES

Construction In Progress

Construction in Progress - 10,917 0.00% 10,917

Total Construction In Progress - 10,917 0.00% 10,917

TOTAL EXPENDITURES - 10,917 0.00% 10,917

Excess (deficiency) of revenues

Over (under) expenditures - 29,741 0.00% 3,532

Net change in fund balance -$                    29,741$             0.00% 3,532$             

FUND BALANCE, BEGINNING (OCT 1, 2023) - 1,342,025

FUND BALANCE, ENDING -$                    1,371,766$         

Statement of Revenues, Expenditures and Changes in Fund Balances

For the Period Ending January 31, 2024

Page 5

Agenda Page 24



QUARRY 
Community Development District Trend Report - General Fund

Oct Nov Dec Jan Feb Mar Apr May Jun Jul Aug Sep Actual Thru Projected FY2024 Adopted % of

Account Description Actual Actual Actual Actual Projected Projected Projected Projected Projected Projected Projected Projected 1/31/2024 Next 8 Mths Total Budget Budget

Revenues

Interest - Investments 4,757$        5,984$        12,286$     13,314$     333$           333$           333$           333$           333$           333$           337$           333$           36,341$       2,668$         39,009$       4,000$         975%

Golf Course Revenue 28,730 - - 28,730 - - 28,750 - - 28,737 - - 57,459 57,486 114,945 114,945 100%

Interest - Tax Collector - - - 1,900 - - - - - - - - 1,900 - 1,900 - 0%

Special Assmnts- Tax Collector - 285,213 441,330 24,973 62,528 - - - - - - - 751,516 62,528 814,044 814,044 100%

Special Assmnts- Discounts - (11,443) (17,425) (749) (625) - - - - - - - (29,617) (625) (30,242) (32,562) 93%

Other Miscellaneous Revenues - 43,500 - 500 - - - - - - - - 44,000 - 44,000 - 0%

Total Revenues 33,487 323,254 436,191 68,668 62,236 333 29,083 333 333 29,070 337 333 861,599 122,057 983,656 900,427 109%

Expenditures

Administrative

P/R-Board of Supervisors 1,000 - 1,600 800 1,000 1,000 1,000 1,000 1,000 1,000 1,000 1,000 3,400 8,000 11,400 12,000 95%

FICA Taxes 77 - 122 61 77 77 77 77 77 77 77 77 260 612 872 918 95%

ProfServ-Arbitrage Rebate - - 1,800 - - - - - - - - - 1,800 - 1,800 600 300%

ProfServ-Engineering 3,605 - (3,605) - 3,750 3,750 3,750 3,750 3,750 3,750 3,750 3,750 - 30,000 30,000 45,000 67%

ProfServ-Legal Services - - 624 1,891 1,750 1,750 1,750 1,750 1,750 1,750 1,750 1,750 2,515 14,000 16,515 21,000 79%

ProfServ-Legal Litigation 1,188 - - - - - - - - - - - 1,188 - 1,188 25,000 5%

ProfServ-Mgmt Consulting 5,190 5,190 5,190 5,190 5,190 5,190 5,190 5,190 5,190 5,190 5,190 5,190 20,762 41,523 62,285 62,285 100%

ProfServ-Property Appraiser 8,851 - - - - - - - - - - - 8,851 - 8,851 34,294 26%

ProfServ-Trustee Fees - - - - - - - - - - - 4,041 - 4,041 4,041 4,041 100%

Auditing Services - - - - - - - 5,500 - - - - - 5,500 5,500 5,500 100%

Website Compliance 388 - - 388 - - 388 - - 389 - - 776 777 1,553 1,553 100%

Postage and Freight 37 6 219 5 50 50 50 50 50 50 50 50 266 400 666 600 111%

Insurance - General Liability 6,949 - - - - - - - - - - - 6,949 - 6,949 6,246 111%

Printing and Binding - - - - 42 42 42 42 41 41 41 41 - 332 332 500 66%

Legal Advertising - - - - - - - 4,000 - - - - - 4,000 4,000 4,000 100%

Miscellaneous Services - - - - - - - - - - - 2,000 - 2,000 2,000 2,000 100%

Misc-Bank Charges - - - - 42 42 42 42 42 42 40 38 - 330 330 498 66%

Misc-Special Projects - - - - - - - 21,547 - - - - - 21,547 21,547 21,547 100%

Misc-Assessment Collection Cost - 5,475 8,478 484 1,251 - - - - - - - 14,438 1,251 15,689 16,281 96%

Misc-Contingency - - 2,273 153 83 83 83 83 84 84 84 84 2,426 668 3,094 1,000 309%

Office Supplies - - - - 21 21 21 21 21 21 20 20 - 166 166 250 66%

Annual District Filing Fee 175 - - - - - - - - - - - 175 - 175 175 100%

Total Administrative 27,460 10,671 16,701 8,972 13,255 12,005 12,393 43,052 12,005 12,394 12,002 18,041 63,806 135,147 198,953 265,288 75%

TOTAL

Statement of Revenues, Expenditures and Changes in Fund Balances
For the Period Ending January 31, 2024

     Report Date: 2/28/2024 Page 6

Agenda Page 25



QUARRY 
Community Development District Trend Report - General Fund

Oct Nov Dec Jan Feb Mar Apr May Jun Jul Aug Sep Actual Thru Projected FY2024 Adopted % of

Account Description Actual Actual Actual Actual Projected Projected Projected Projected Projected Projected Projected Projected 1/31/2024 Next 8 Mths Total Budget Budget

TOTAL

Statement of Revenues, Expenditures and Changes in Fund Balances
For the Period Ending January 31, 2024

Field

ProfServ-Field Management 442 442 442 442 442 442 442 442 442 442 442 443 1,768 3,537 5,305 5,305 100%

Contracts-Preserve Maintenance 25,958 - - - 25,958 - 25,958 - - 25,958 - - 25,958 77,873 103,831 103,830 100%

Contracts - Lake Maintenance 5,417 5,417 5,417 5,417 5,417 5,417 5,417 5,417 5,417 5,417 5,417 5,417 21,668 43,336 65,004 65,004 100%

R&M-General - - 50 - 5,833 5,833 5,833 5,833 5,834 5,834 5,834 5,834 50 46,668 46,718 70,000 67%

R&M-Fence - - - - - - - - - - - 2,500 - 2,500 2,500 2,500 100%

R&M-Lake - - - - 12,911 12,911 12,911 12,911 12,911 12,911 12,910 12,910 - 103,286 103,286 154,930 67%

R&M-Weed Harvesting - - 13,480 4,745 6,250 6,250 6,250 6,250 6,250 6,250 6,250 6,250 18,225 50,000 68,225 75,000 91%

Miscellaneous Maintenance - - - - 306 306 306 306 306 306 306 304 - 2,446 2,446 3,670 67%

Water Quality Testing - - - - 2,492 2,492 2,492 2,492 2,492 2,492 2,492 2,488 - 19,932 19,932 29,900 67%

Capital Projects - - - - 6,250 6,250 6,250 6,250 6,250 6,250 6,250 6,250 - 50,000 50,000 75,000 67%

Total Field 31,817 5,859 19,389 10,604 65,859 39,901 65,859 39,901 39,902 65,860 39,901 42,396 67,669 399,578 467,247 585,139 80%

Total Expenditures 59,277 16,530 36,090 19,576 79,114 51,906 78,252 82,953 51,907 78,253 51,903 60,437 131,475 534,725 666,200 850,427 78%

Reserves

Reserve - Other - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - 50,000 0%

Total Reserves - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - 50,000 0%

Total Expenditures & Reserves 59,277 16,530 36,090 19,576 79,114 51,906 78,252 82,953 51,907 78,253 51,903 60,437 131,475 534,725 666,200 900,427 74%

Excess (deficiency) of revenues

Over (under) expenditures (25,790) 306,724 400,101 49,092 (16,878) (51,573) (49,169) (82,620) (51,574) (49,184) (51,566) (60,104) 730,124 (412,668) 317,456 - 0%

Other Financing Sources (Uses)

Contribution to (Use of) Fund Balance - - - - (16,878) (51,573) (49,169) (82,620) (51,574) (49,184) (51,566) (60,104) - (412,668) (412,668) - 0%

Total Financing Sources (Uses) - - - - (16,878) (51,573) (49,169) (82,620) (51,574) (49,184) (51,566) (60,104) - (412,668) (412,668) - 0%

Net change in fund balance (25,790)$    306,724$   400,101$   49,092$     (16,878)$    (51,573)$    (49,169)$    (82,620)$    (51,574)$    (49,184)$    (51,566)$    (60,104)$    730,124$     (412,668)$    317,456$     -$                  0%

Fund Balance, Beginning (Oct 1, 2023) 921,547 - 921,547 921,547

Fund Balance, Ending 1,651,671$  (412,668)$    1,239,003$  921,547$     

     Report Date: 2/28/2024 Page 7

Agenda Page 26



QUARRY

Community Development District Statement of Revenue and Expenditures - All Funds

General Fund

►

Budget target:  33.33%

Variance Analysis

 Account Name 

 Annual 

Budget 

 YTD 

Actual 

% of 

Budget

Revenues

Other Miscellaneous Revenue $0 $44,000 0%

Expenditures

Administration

ProfServ-Arbitrage Rebate $600 $1,800 300%

Website Compliance $1,553 $776 50%

Postage and Freight $600 $261 44%

Insurance - General Liability $6,246 $6,949 111% EGIS Insurance FY 2024 paid in full

Misc-Contingency $1,000 $2,273 227% DNH*GODADDY.COM email and archiving renewal

Notes to the Financial Statements

10/1/2023 - 1/31/2024

Assets

■ Allow - Doubtful Accounts - Collier County Tax Collector FY 2020 charge backs due to NSF checks

■ Assessments Receivable - Collier County Tax Collector FY 2020 charge backs due to NSF checks

AMTEC Series 2020 rebate report 3 years of activity

Heritage Bay Umbrella $43,500; application fees $500

Explanation

Innersync Studio, quarterly web/compliance services

IMS, FedEx, and Tax Collector Tax Roll postage $175

Page 8

Agenda Page 27



October 1, 2023 - January 31, 2024

Quarry

Community Development District

Supporting Schedules

Agenda Page 28



QUARRY

Community Development District All Funds

Discount / Gross Series 2020

Date Net Amount (Penalties) Collection Amount General Debt Service  

Assessments Levied 2,286,271$      814,046$          1,472,226$        

Allocation % 100.00% 35.61% 64.39%

Real Estate - Installment

11/02/23 7,161$           405$         146$                  7,712$             2,746$              4,966$               

11/06/23 21,186 901 432 22,520 8,018 14,501

12/22/23 1,370 43 28 1,441 513 928

01/10/24 1,644 52 34 1,729 616 1,113

Real Estate - Current

11/14/23 206,160 8,765 4,207 219,132 78,024 141,109

11/20/23 335,484 14,264 6,847 356,594 126,968 229,626

11/24/23 183,524 7,803 3,745 195,072 69,457 125,615

12/06/23 988,489 42,027 20,173 1,050,690 374,107 676,583

12/12/23 123,136 5,101 2,513 130,750 46,555 84,195

12/22/23 53,743 1,768 1,097 56,608 20,156 36,452

01/10/24 65,028 2,052 1,327 68,407 24,357 44,050

TOTAL 1,986,925$    83,181$    40,549$             2,110,656$      751,516$          1,359,139$        

% COLLECTED 92.32% 92.32% 92.32%

TOTAL OUTSTANDING 175,615$         62,529$            113,086$           

Non-Ad Valorem Special Assessments - Collier County Tax Collector

(Monthly Collection Distributions)

For the Fiscal Year Ending September 30, 2024

ALLOCATION BY FUND

Page 9

Agenda Page 29



QUARRY

Community Development District

ACCOUNT NAME BANK NAME YIELD BALANCE

OPERATING FUND

Government Interest Checking Valley National Bank 5.25% 1,511,531$                 

Public Funds MMA Variance Account BankUnited 5.25% 946,108

Subtotal 2,457,638

DEBT SERVICE AND CAPITAL PROJECT FUNDS

Series 2020 Revenue Fund U.S. Bank 5.25% 1,017,128

Series 2020 Construction Fund U.S. Bank 5.25% 2,099,803

Total 5,574,570$                 

Cash & Investment Report

October 1, 2023 - January 31, 2024

Page 10

Agenda Page 30



Posting 
Date

Document 
Type

Document 
No. Description Amount

Cleared 
Amount Difference

Outstanding Checks

1/24/2024 Payment 15035 INNERSYNC STUDIO, LTD 388.13 0.00 388.13

1/24/2024 Payment 15036 PENINSULA IMPROVEMENT CORP. 44,854.50 0.00 44,854.50

1/24/2024 Payment 15037 FEDEX 36.04 0.00 36.04

1/24/2024 Payment 15038 M.R.I. UNDERWATER SPECIALISTS, INC. 50.00 0.00 50.00

1/24/2024 Payment 15039 KUTAK ROCK LLP 1,997.43 0.00 1,997.43

Total Outstanding Checks...................................................................................................................... 47,326.10 47,326.10

G/L Balance 1,511,530.82

Bank Account No. 7852

Statement No. 01-24

Statement Date 1/31/2024

Statement Balance 1,558,856.92G/L Balance (LCY) 1,511,530.82

Difference 0.00

Ending G/L Balance 1,511,530.82

Subtotal 1,511,530.82

Outstanding Deposits 0.00

Negative Adjustments 0.00

Positive Adjustments 0.00

Subtotal 1,558,856.92

Outstanding Checks 47,326.10

Ending Balance 1,511,530.82

Differences 0.00

Valley National - GF

Bank Reconciliation

Quarry CDD

Page 11

Agenda Page 31



QUARRY

Community Development District

SOURCES OF FUNDS TOTAL 

10/1/2021 State of Florida 3,350,061.50$      

10/26/2021 State of Florida 828,145.56

10/26/2021 State of Florida 46,008.09

11/17/2021 State of Florida 94,901.34

11/17/2021 State of Florida 91,213.19

12/21/2021 State of Florida 65,276.88

12/17/2021      FEMA check sent to U.S. Bank exceeded actual checks -

1/10/2022 State of Florida 18,585.00

1/10/2022 State of Florida 1,032.50

Total 4,495,224.06$      

LESS:

11/1/2021      Debt Service - Principal Prepayment 1,351,000.00

DEPOSIT - Acquisition and Construction - General 3,144,224.06$       

OTHER SOURCES 

11/1/2021 Transfer from Revenue Acct 4004 938.50

Dividends FY 2022 145.89

Dividends FY 2023 44,143.78

Dividends thru 1/31/24 40,658.84

TOTAL SOURCES OF FUNDS 85,887.01$           

USE OF FUNDS: 

DATE VENDOR REQUISITIONS REQ # PENDING  TOTAL 

4/27/2022 CPH 1 4,940.00

4/27/2022 Kutak Rock LLP 2 988.00

5/24/2022 Midwest Construction Products Corp 3 475.00

5/16/2022 Midwest Construction Products Corp 4 3,000.00

5/16/2022 Midwest Construction Products Corp 5 7,900.00

5/24/2022 Kutak Rock LLP 6 1,776.45

5/24/2022 CPH 7 11,615.40

6/9/2022 Kutak Rock LLP 8 1,378.00

6/9/2022 Midwest Construction Products Corp 9 1,900.00

6/9/2022 Midwest Construction Products Corp 10 4,800.00

6/9/2022 Midwest Construction Products Corp 11 1,425.00

6/9/2022 Crosscreek Environmental LLC 12 2,997.66

8/1/2022 CPH 13 27,155.66

8/1/2022 CPH 14 1,800.00

8/1/2022 CPH 15 33,809.58

8/22/2022 Crosscreek Environmental LLC 16 4,000.13

8/22/2022 Midwest Construction Products Corp 17 6,000.00

8/22/2022 Midwest Construction Products Corp 18 1,020.00

8/22/2022 MJS Golf Services LLC 19 7,615.15

Series 2020  (FEMA Project) 

Acquisition and Construction - General

FY 9/30/2024

Page 12

Agenda Page 32



QUARRY

Community Development District

SOURCES OF FUNDS TOTAL 

Series 2020  (FEMA Project) 

Acquisition and Construction - General

FY 9/30/2024

8/22/2022 MJS Golf Services LLC 20 4,157.51

8/22/2022 MJS Golf Services LLC 21 12,849.68

8/22/2022 MJS Golf Services LLC 22 6,568.09

8/22/2022 MJS Golf Services LLC 23 5,058.60

8/22/2022 MJS Golf Services LLC 24 16,849.00

8/22/2022 MJS Golf Services LLC 25 49,004.13

8/22/2022 MJS Golf Services LLC 26 4,346.44

8/26/2022 CPH 27 7,745.15

9/14/2022 MJS Golf Services LLC 28 7,887.77

9/14/2022 Glase Golf, Inc 29 319,983.78

10/20/2022 Crosscreek Environmental LLC 30 5,295.80

10/20/2022 CPH 31 6,513.38

10/20/2022 Kutak Rock LLP 32 78.00

12/2/2022 CPH 33 8,866.67

12/21/2022 CPH 34 4,500.00

1/25/2023 CPH 35 5,398.75

2/17/2023 CPH 36 1,828.75

2/17/2023 CPH 37 110.00

4/17/2023 MJS Golf Services LLC 38 17,952.64

4/17/2023 MJS Golf Services LLC 39 2,844.35

4/17/2023 MJS Golf Services LLC 40 5,715.47

4/17/2023 MJS Golf Services LLC 41 10,351.76

5/2/2023 MJS Golf Services LLC 42 4,619.04

5/2/2023 MJS Golf Services LLC 43 4,014.17

5/2/2023 CPH 44 560.60

5/2/2023 MJS Golf Services LLC 45 14,377.92

5/2/2023 MJS Golf Services LLC 46 2,876.79

5/2/2023 MJS Golf Services LLC 47 5,672.47

5/2/2023 MJS Golf Services LLC 48 14,338.68

5/3/2023 MJS Golf Services LLC 49 5,153.28

5/3/2023 Midwest Construction Products Corp 50 3,302.00

5/3/2023 Midwest Construction Products Corp 51 5,248.00

5/3/2023 Midwest Construction Products Corp 52 2,637.00

5/3/2023 CPH 53 9,283.60

5/3/2023 MJS Golf Services LLC 54 8,194.20

6/13/2023 MJS Golf Services LLC 55 14,425.44

6/13/2023 Ewing Irrigation Products, Inc 56 34,725.39

5/30/2023 MJS Golf Services LLC 57 3,993.31

5/30/2023 MJS Golf Services LLC 58 16,314.17

6/13/2023 Midwest Construction Products Corp 59 5,251.00

6/13/2023 Midwest Construction Products Corp 60 2,637.00

6/13/2023 MJS Golf Services LLC 61 2,294.58

6/13/2023 MJS Golf Services LLC 62 12,704.54

6/13/2023 MJS Golf Services LLC 63 14,018.04

6/13/2023 MJS Golf Services LLC 64 8,564.45

6/13/2023 MJS Golf Services LLC 65 11,911.32

Page 13

Agenda Page 33



QUARRY

Community Development District

SOURCES OF FUNDS TOTAL 

Series 2020  (FEMA Project) 

Acquisition and Construction - General

FY 9/30/2024

7/26/2023 Midwest Construction Products Corp 66 950.00

7/26/2023 Midwest Construction Products Corp 67 5,447.00

7/20/2023 Midwest Construction Products Corp 68 392.00

7/20/2023 Midwest Construction Products Corp 69 870.00

7/20/2023 Midwest Construction Products Corp 70 392.00

7/20/2023 CPH 71 11,485.79

7/20/2023 MJS Golf Services LLC 72 9,372.24

7/20/2023 MJS Golf Services LLC 73 5,298.36

7/20/2023 MJS Golf Services LLC 74 18,759.39

7/20/2023 MJS Golf Services LLC 75 8,737.08

7/20/2023 Crosscreek Environmental LLC 76 15,626.44

7/26/2023 Glase Golf, Inc 77 115,089.05

7/26/2023 MJS Golf Services LLC 78 6,330.90

7/26/2023 MJS Golf Services LLC 79 3,984.81

8/14/2023 MJS Golf Services LLC 80 3,086.64

7/26/2023 MJS Golf Services LLC 81 2,040.72

7/26/2023 MJS Golf Services LLC 82 1,031.52

7/27/2023 CPH 83 16,267.89

7/27/2023 CPH 84 20,538.00

8/22/2023 Midwest Construction Products Corp 85 582.00

8/22/2023 Midwest Construction Products Corp 86 600.00

8/22/2023 Crosscreek Environmental LLC 87 6,998.12

9/13/2023 Inframark 88 2,425.00

9/13/2023 CPH 89 27,466.95

1/9/2024 MJS Golf Services LLC 90 1,082.64

1/8/2024 The Quarry Community Association 91 2,863.80

1/8/2024 Kutak Rock LLP 92 234.00

1/8/2024 CPH 93 6,136.50

1/8/2024 Midwest Construction Products Corp 94 600.00

Total Requisitions 1,130,307.58

8/31/2023 Less:  Contracts-Payable 722,273.38
9/30/2023 Less:  Contracts-Payable 5,763.62

TOTAL CONSTRUCTION ACCOUNT BALANCE @ 1/31/24 1,371,766.49$       

Page 14

Agenda Page 34



Date
Payee

Type
Payee Invoice No. Payment Description Invoice / GL Description G/L Account #

Amount 

Paid

VALLEY NATIONAL - GF - (ACCT#XXXXX7852)

CHECK # 15033

01/05/24 Vendor QUARRY CDD - C/O U.S. BANK N.A. 12212023-204 ASSESSMENT COLLECTIONS 2023-24 Due From Other Funds 131000 $580,481.00

Check Total $580,481.00

CHECK # 15034

01/24/24 Vendor COLLIER COUNTY TAX COLLECTOR 121323 POSTAGE BILLING Postage and Freight 001-541006-51301 $174.66

Check Total $174.66

CHECK # 15035

01/24/24 Vendor INNERSYNC STUDIO, LTD 21917 WEBSITE SVCS/PDF ACCESSIBILITY Website Compliance 001-534397-51301 $388.13

Check Total $388.13

CHECK # 15036

01/24/24 Vendor PENINSULA IMPROVEMENT CORP. CESI-020144 PICK UP CUT AND HARVSTED PILES R&M-Weed Harvesting 001-546486-53901 $6,620.00

01/24/24 Vendor PENINSULA IMPROVEMENT CORP. CESI-020145 QTRLY WETLAND PRESERVES MAINT Contracts - Lake Maintenance 001-534345-53901 $25,957.50

01/24/24 Vendor PENINSULA IMPROVEMENT CORP. CESI-020195 NOV 2023 LAKE & LITORAL MAINT Contracts - Lake Maintenance 001-534345-53901 $5,417.00

01/24/24 Vendor PENINSULA IMPROVEMENT CORP. CESI-020217 LAKE MAINT R&M-Weed Harvesting 001-546486-53901 $6,860.00

Check Total $44,854.50

CHECK # 15037

01/24/24 Vendor FEDEX 8-360-00345 FEDEX MRI UNDERWATER Postage and Freight 001-541006-51301 $36.04

Check Total $36.04

CHECK # 15038

01/24/24 Vendor M.R.I. UNDERWATER SPECIALISTS, INC. 4305 ADDITIONAL INSURED ON COMMERCIAL AUTO POLICY R&M-General 001-546001-53901 $50.00

Check Total $50.00

CHECK # 15039

01/24/24 Vendor KUTAK ROCK LLP 332289016823-1 OCT 2023 GEN COUNSEL ProfServ-Legal Services 001-531023-51401 $1,997.43

Check Total $1,997.43

CHECK # 15040

01/24/24 Vendor AMTEC 6973-11-23 REBATE REPORT SERIES 2020 ProfServ-Arbitrage Rebate 001-531002-51301 $1,800.00

Check Total $1,800.00

ACH #DD222

01/19/24 Employee TIMOTHY B. CANTWELL PAYROLL January 19, 2024 Payroll Posting $184.70

ACH Total $184.70

ACH #DD223

01/19/24 Employee DEAN A. BRITT PAYROLL January 19, 2024 Payroll Posting $184.70

ACH Total $184.70

ACH #DD225

01/19/24 Employee WILLIAM L. PATRICK PAYROLL January 19, 2024 Payroll Posting $184.70

ACH Total $184.70

Account Total $630,335.86

(Sorted by Check / ACH No.)

Payment Register by Bank Account

For the Period from 1/1/24 to 1/31/24

QUARRY COMMUNITY DEVELOPMENT DISTRICT

Page 15

Agenda Page 35



 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

6Ci. 
 
  

Agenda Page 36



Agenda Page 37



 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

Seventh Order of Business 
  

Agenda Page 38



 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

7D. 
  

Agenda Page 39



Agenda Page 40



Agenda Page 41



Agenda Page 42



Agenda Page 43



Agenda Page 44



Agenda Page 45



Agenda Page 46



Agenda Page 47



Agenda Page 48



Agenda Page 49



Agenda Page 50



Agenda Page 51



Agenda Page 52



Agenda Page 53



 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

7E. 
  

Agenda Page 54



Agenda Page 55



Agenda Page 56



Agenda Page 57



Agenda Page 58



Agenda Page 59



Agenda Page 60



Agenda Page 61



Agenda Page 62



Agenda Page 63



Agenda Page 64



Agenda Page 65



Agenda Page 66



Agenda Page 67



Agenda Page 68



Agenda Page 69



Agenda Page 70



Agenda Page 71



Agenda Page 72



Agenda Page 73



Agenda Page 74



Agenda Page 75



 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

7G. 
  

Agenda Page 76



From: Dean Britt <dbritt@quarrycdd.org>  
Sent: Friday, January 19, 2024 8:07 AM 
To: Faircloth, Justin <justin.faircloth@inframark.com> 
Cc: Lopez, Albert J. <alopez@cphcorp.com> 
Subject: Re: QCDD-RE: Second Request for Required Compliance Items 
 

Don't expect to do a reply all 
Justin,  please add this to the agenda, engineer report 
Albert,  need an update, with documentation of whats left, what communication is done 
and who will take care of it and when 

 
From: Faircloth, Justin <justin.faircloth@inframark.com> 
Sent: Thursday, January 18, 2024 12:44 PM 
To: Lopez, Albert J. <alopez@cphcorp.com>; Yang, Ah <ah.yang@usbank.com> 
Cc: Mendenhall, Andrew <andy.mendenhall@inframark.com>; Popelka, Leah 
<leah.popelka@inframark.com>; MacGregor, Sandra <Sandra.MacGregor@inframark.com>; Robertson, 
Kerrian <kerrian.robertson@inframark.com>; Inguanzo, Sergio <sergio.inguanzo@inframark.com> 
Subject: RE: QCDD-RE: Second Request for Required Compliance Items  
  
Thank you Albert.  
  
Ah, if you require anything further please let me know.  
  
Sincerely, 
Justin  
  
Justin Faircloth | CAM, CDM | District Manager 
  

 
  
239.785.0675 | www.inframarkims.com 
  
SUPERVISORS, PLEASE DO NOT REPLY TO ALL AS THIS COULD BE A VIOLATION OF THE FLORIDA SUNSHINE PROVISIONS. 
  
CONFIDENTIALITY NOTICE: The information in this email is intended for the sole use of the recipient(s) and may be confidential 
and subject to protection under the law. If you are not the intended recipient, you are hereby notified that any distribution or 
copying of this email is strictly prohibited. If you have received this message in error, please contact the sender immediately 
and delete your copy from your computer. 
  
From: Lopez, Albert J. <alopez@cphcorp.com>  
Sent: Thursday, January 18, 2024 12:43 PM 
To: Faircloth, Justin <justin.faircloth@inframark.com>; Yang, Ah <ah.yang@usbank.com> 
Cc: Mendenhall, Andrew <andy.mendenhall@inframark.com>; Popelka, Leah 
<leah.popelka@inframark.com>; MacGregor, Sandra <Sandra.MacGregor@inframark.com>; Robertson, 
Kerrian <kerrian.robertson@inframark.com>; Inguanzo, Sergio <sergio.inguanzo@inframark.com> 
Subject: RE: QCDD-RE: Second Request for Required Compliance Items 
  
Justin, 

Agenda Page 77

mailto:dbritt@quarrycdd.org
mailto:justin.faircloth@inframark.com
mailto:alopez@cphcorp.com
mailto:justin.faircloth@inframark.com
mailto:alopez@cphcorp.com
mailto:ah.yang@usbank.com
mailto:andy.mendenhall@inframark.com
mailto:leah.popelka@inframark.com
mailto:Sandra.MacGregor@inframark.com
mailto:kerrian.robertson@inframark.com
mailto:sergio.inguanzo@inframark.com
https://urldefense.com/v3/__http:/www.inframarkims.com/__;!!GqRiWhUXVfE!VQuUVDZxbit4ijSDbtnzyVOgRhmYUogFdDNKruBCJH5MOP9dLSAHCN_v7zto7VLDaHPJWECMh14L9VdnWVJXk0CmCck$
mailto:alopez@cphcorp.com
mailto:justin.faircloth@inframark.com
mailto:ah.yang@usbank.com
mailto:andy.mendenhall@inframark.com
mailto:leah.popelka@inframark.com
mailto:Sandra.MacGregor@inframark.com
mailto:kerrian.robertson@inframark.com
mailto:sergio.inguanzo@inframark.com


  
The project has not been completed to date. an extension will be required. 
  
Regards, 
  
Albert Lopez 

BRANCH MANAGER – FORT MYERS, FL 
  
alopez@cphcorp.com 

o 239.332.5499 c 386.518.9175 

  

        
  
BUILDING STRONGER COMMUNITIES TOGETHER 
  
From: Faircloth, Justin <justin.faircloth@inframark.com>  
Sent: Thursday, January 18, 2024 12:18 PM 
To: Lopez, Albert J. <alopez@cphcorp.com>; Yang, Ah <ah.yang@usbank.com> 
Cc: Mendenhall, Andrew <andy.mendenhall@inframark.com>; Popelka, Leah 
<leah.popelka@inframark.com>; MacGregor, Sandra <Sandra.MacGregor@inframark.com>; Robertson, 
Kerrian <kerrian.robertson@inframark.com>; Inguanzo, Sergio <sergio.inguanzo@inframark.com> 
Subject: QCDD-RE: Second Request for Required Compliance Items 
Importance: High 
  
Good afternoon,  
  
Albert, Ah Yang with US Bank, is inquiring about the completion certificate for bond series 2020. 
Would you please respond accordingly? I am not exactly sure what the bank is requesting here, 
but if they are inquiring about the construction account and the current project then obviously 
this work has not been completed and additional work remains to be decided by the Board and 
according to the requirements we have 5 yrs. to decide on the final distribution of the FEMA 
monies deposited in the construction account. See the highlight in the email below, I have also 
included the contact information for you below. Would you also please copy the group on your 
reply? I have left a voicemail for Ah Yang as well and I am waiting to hear back.  
   
Account: Quarry Community Development District Special Assessment Refunding 

Bonds, Series 2020 

 

  
Account Number: 258424*** 

 
 

Item Document Reference Due Date 
 

 
Completion 
Certificate 

Master Trust Indenture - Section Definition 12/21/2023 
 

  
   
 
Ah Yang 
Trust Review Analyst 
U.S. Bank Trust Company National Association 
Telephone: 651-466-6339 
Email: ah.yang@usbank.com 

Agenda Page 78

mailto:alopez@cphcorp.com
mailto:justin.faircloth@inframark.com
mailto:alopez@cphcorp.com
mailto:ah.yang@usbank.com
mailto:andy.mendenhall@inframark.com
mailto:leah.popelka@inframark.com
mailto:Sandra.MacGregor@inframark.com
mailto:kerrian.robertson@inframark.com
mailto:sergio.inguanzo@inframark.com
mailto:ah.yang@usbank.com
https://urldefense.com/v3/__https:/www.facebook.com/CPHCorp/__;!!GqRiWhUXVfE!X_7YORIsFeadu4HrI26mJLNAoiekHhhzF-31_0kIA7H_l8paRdv1LKr4Oj8ZGo6JXrbhmaHtuSrsUm_EdUqv3hc$
https://urldefense.com/v3/__https:/www.linkedin.com/company/cphcorp__;!!GqRiWhUXVfE!X_7YORIsFeadu4HrI26mJLNAoiekHhhzF-31_0kIA7H_l8paRdv1LKr4Oj8ZGo6JXrbhmaHtuSrsUm_E2qoc-rY$


  
  
  
Sincerely, 
Justin  
  
Justin Faircloth | CAM, CDM | District Manager 
  

 
  
239.785.0675 | www.inframarkims.com 
  
SUPERVISORS, PLEASE DO NOT REPLY TO ALL AS THIS COULD BE A VIOLATION OF THE FLORIDA SUNSHINE PROVISIONS. 
  
CONFIDENTIALITY NOTICE: The information in this email is intended for the sole use of the recipient(s) and may be confidential 
and subject to protection under the law. If you are not the intended recipient, you are hereby notified that any distribution or 
copying of this email is strictly prohibited. If you have received this message in error, please contact the sender immediately 
and delete your copy from your computer. 
  
From: Inguanzo, Sergio <sergio.inguanzo@inframark.com>  
Sent: Monday, January 8, 2024 2:35 PM 
To: Yang, Ah <ah.yang@usbank.com>; MacGregor, Sandra <Sandra.MacGregor@inframark.com>; 
Robertson, Kerrian <kerrian.robertson@inframark.com> 
Cc: Mendenhall, Andrew <andy.mendenhall@inframark.com>; Faircloth, Justin 
<justin.faircloth@inframark.com>; Popelka, Leah <leah.popelka@inframark.com> 
Subject: RE: Second Request for Required Compliance Items 
  
I am waiting from the DM on Quarry. 
  
Thank you, 
  
Sergio Inguanzo | District Accountant 
  

 
  
210 N. University Dr, Suite 702 | Coral Springs, FL  33071 
(O) 954.753.7837 | www.inframarkims.com 
  
From: Yang, Ah <ah.yang@usbank.com>  
Sent: Monday, January 8, 2024 2:34 PM 
To: MacGregor, Sandra <Sandra.MacGregor@inframark.com>; Robertson, Kerrian 
<kerrian.robertson@inframark.com>; Inguanzo, Sergio <sergio.inguanzo@inframark.com> 
Cc: Mendenhall, Andrew <andy.mendenhall@inframark.com>; Faircloth, Justin 
<justin.faircloth@inframark.com>; Popelka, Leah <leah.popelka@inframark.com> 
Subject: RE: Second Request for Required Compliance Items 
  
Hi Sandra, 

Agenda Page 79

https://urldefense.com/v3/__http:/www.inframarkims.com/__;!!GqRiWhUXVfE!X_7YORIsFeadu4HrI26mJLNAoiekHhhzF-31_0kIA7H_l8paRdv1LKr4Oj8ZGo6JXrbhmaHtuSrsUm_EEamhwQc$
mailto:sergio.inguanzo@inframark.com
mailto:ah.yang@usbank.com
mailto:Sandra.MacGregor@inframark.com
mailto:kerrian.robertson@inframark.com
mailto:andy.mendenhall@inframark.com
mailto:justin.faircloth@inframark.com
mailto:leah.popelka@inframark.com
https://urldefense.com/v3/__http:/www.inframarkims.com/__;!!GqRiWhUXVfE!X_7YORIsFeadu4HrI26mJLNAoiekHhhzF-31_0kIA7H_l8paRdv1LKr4Oj8ZGo6JXrbhmaHtuSrsUm_EEamhwQc$
mailto:ah.yang@usbank.com
mailto:Sandra.MacGregor@inframark.com
mailto:kerrian.robertson@inframark.com
mailto:sergio.inguanzo@inframark.com
mailto:andy.mendenhall@inframark.com
mailto:justin.faircloth@inframark.com
mailto:leah.popelka@inframark.com


  
The attachments that you have provided it not the required compliance items that was listed below. The 
email below is requesting for the Completion Certificate for the projects account. 
  
If both projects are completed for Chapel Crossing and Quarry, please provide the completion certificate 
from the Consulting Engineering. If the projects are not completed, please confirm that it’s not 
completed and I can extend the required completion certificate to another year. 
  
Please let me know if you have any questions. 
  
Thank you, 
  
Ah Yang  
Officer | Corp Trust Review Analyst 
O: 651-466-6339 | M: | ah.yang@usbank.com  
 
U.S. Bank  
West Side Flats St Paul 
USPS & Interoffice Mail: 1200 Energy Park Dr, Saint Paul, MN 55108 | EP-DM-TRGR 
Delivery Services: 60 Livingston Ave, Saint Paul, MN 55107 | EP-MN-WS3C| usbank.com 
  
  
From: MacGregor, Sandra <Sandra.MacGregor@inframark.com>  
Sent: Thursday, January 4, 2024 1:53 PM 
To: Robertson, Kerrian <kerrian.robertson@inframark.com>; Inguanzo, Sergio 
<sergio.inguanzo@inframark.com> 
Cc: Mendenhall, Andrew <andy.mendenhall@inframark.com>; Faircloth, Justin 
<justin.faircloth@inframark.com>; Popelka, Leah <leah.popelka@inframark.com>; Yang, Ah 
<ah.yang@usbank.com> 
Subject: [EXTERNAL] RE: Second Request for Required Compliance Items 
  

[WARNING] Use caution when opening attachments or links from unknown senders.  
  
Is this what you are looking for? 
  
  
Sandra MacGregor| Accountant II 
  

 
  
210 N. University Drive | Suite 702 | Coral Springs, FL 33071 
(O) (954) 753-4452 | www.inframarkims.com 
  

Agenda Page 80

mailto:ah.yang@usbank.com
https://urldefense.com/v3/__http:/www.usbank.com/__;!!GqRiWhUXVfE!X3fGpvqYiqlIjJyiW-3IdczbET5cw6ec7ezMvQAU55z1HYHCJAuL3b-nakdlp8FWwneiLcKW15jiAkCWJSBxEQM$
mailto:Sandra.MacGregor@inframark.com
mailto:kerrian.robertson@inframark.com
mailto:sergio.inguanzo@inframark.com
mailto:andy.mendenhall@inframark.com
mailto:justin.faircloth@inframark.com
mailto:leah.popelka@inframark.com
mailto:ah.yang@usbank.com
https://urldefense.com/v3/__http:/www.inframarkims.com/__;!!GRBPSLYk!90k-4XlRKo67ljhhqN4YmSIPDAXmVWRR9dBhlw-5NwUL1M2YPFBqGkWEJuDcFEXmdw-aEu_nO6cNoqrIF5mZ8An1XCnk$


 
  
  
  
  
From: Robertson, Kerrian <krobertson@inframark.com>  
Sent: Thursday, January 4, 2024 2:33 PM 
To: MacGregor, Sandra <Sandra.MacGregor@inframark.com>; Inguanzo, Sergio 
<sergio.inguanzo@inframark.com> 
Cc: Mendenhall, Andrew <andy.mendenhall@inframark.com>; Faircloth, Justin 
<justin.faircloth@inframark.com>; Popelka, Leah <leah.popelka@inframark.com>; Robertson, Kerrian 
<Kerri.Robertson@Inframark.com>; Yang, Ah <ah.yang@usbank.com> 
Subject: FW: Second Request for Required Compliance Items 
  
Sandra/Sergio: 
  
The bank is asking for the completion certificates for bond series 2020; please see below. If you need an 
extension, please let Ah know. 
  
Thanks, 
-Kerri  
  
Kerri Robertson, MBA | Treasury Analyst 
  

 
  
210 N. University Drive, Suite 702 | Coral Springs, FL 33071 
(O) 407-566-4376|(C) 954-422-6335| www.inframarkims.com 
  
From: ah.yang@usbank.com <ah.yang@usbank.com>  
Sent: Thursday, January 4, 2024 12:06 PM 
To: Robertson, Kerrian <krobertson@inframark.com> 
Subject: Second Request for Required Compliance Items 
  

  
  
  

  
WARNING: This email originated outside of Inframark. Take caution when clicking on links and opening 

attachments. 

Agenda Page 81

mailto:krobertson@inframark.com
mailto:Sandra.MacGregor@inframark.com
mailto:sergio.inguanzo@inframark.com
mailto:andy.mendenhall@inframark.com
mailto:justin.faircloth@inframark.com
mailto:leah.popelka@inframark.com
mailto:Kerri.Robertson@Inframark.com
mailto:ah.yang@usbank.com
https://urldefense.com/v3/__http:/www.inframarkims.com/__;!!GRBPSLYk!90k-4XlRKo67ljhhqN4YmSIPDAXmVWRR9dBhlw-5NwUL1M2YPFBqGkWEJuDcFEXmdw-aEu_nO6cNoqrIF5mZ8An1XCnk$
mailto:ah.yang@usbank.com
mailto:ah.yang@usbank.com
mailto:krobertson@inframark.com


  

  

  

 
Dear Kerrian Robertson: 

 
  

Our records indicate that the following item(s) previously requested for the below account(s) has not been received: 
 

 
 

Account: Chapel Crossings Community Development District Capital Improvement Revenue Bonds Series 2020 
 

  
Account Number: 214400*** 

 
 

Item Document Reference Due Date 
 

 
Completion Certificate Master Trust Indenture - Section Definition 12/15/2023 

 
 
 

Account: Quarry Community Development District Special Assessment Refunding Bonds, Series 2020 
 

  
Account Number: 258424*** 

 
 

Item Document Reference Due Date 
 

 
Completion Certificate Master Trust Indenture - Section Definition 12/21/2023 

 
  

 
If the requested item(s) has been sent, you may disregard this email. 
 
Please send your item(s) to us electronically in an unalterable portable document format (pdf). 
 
We appreciate your attention to this matter. Please contact me at the telephone number or email address below to discuss any questions or 
concerns you may have regarding the content of this email. You may also contact your Relationship Manager, Leanne Duffy, at 407-835-
3807. 

 

 
 
Sincerely, 
Ah Yang 
Trust Review Analyst 
U.S. Bank Trust Company National Association 
Telephone: 651-466-6339 
Email: ah.yang@usbank.com 

 

 
 
 

U.S. Bank Confidential 

 

 

   
 
U.S. BANCORP made the following annotations 
--------------------------------------------------------------------- 
Electronic Privacy Notice. This e-mail, and any attachments, contains information that is, or may 
be, covered by electronic communications privacy laws, and is also confidential and proprietary 
in nature. If you are not the intended recipient, please be advised that you are legally prohibited 
from retaining, using, copying, distributing, or otherwise disclosing this information in any 
manner. Instead, please reply to the sender that you have received this communication in error, 
and then immediately delete it. Thank you in advance for your cooperation. 
 
--------------------------------------------------------------------- 
U.S. BANCORP made the following annotations 
 
--------------------------------------------------------------------- 
 
Electronic Privacy Notice. This e-mail, and any attachments, contains information that is, or may be, 
covered by electronic communications privacy laws, and is also confidential and proprietary in nature. If 

Agenda Page 82

mailto:ah.yang@usbank.com


you are not the intended recipient, please be advised that you are legally prohibited from retaining, 
using, copying, distributing, or otherwise disclosing this information in any manner. Instead, please reply 
to the sender that you have received this communication in error, and then immediately delete it. Thank 
you in advance for your cooperation.  
 
---------------------------------------------------------------------  

  

ATTENTION: THIS E-MAIL MAY BE AN ADVERTISEMENT OR SOLICITATION FOR PRODUCTS AND 
SERVICES. If you wish to unsubscribe from marketing e-mails from Corporate and Commercial 
Banking within U.S. Bancorp and its affiliates, update your preferences here. This action will not 
affect delivery of service messages regarding your accounts that we may need to send you or 
preferences you may have previously set for other e-mail services from U.S. Bancorp and its 
affiliates. 

  

 

Agenda Page 83

https://urldefense.com/v3/__https:/emailpreferences.usbank.com/emailPref/email_usb_main.jsp?redirect=email__;!!GqRiWhUXVfE!X3fGpvqYiqlIjJyiW-3IdczbET5cw6ec7ezMvQAU55z1HYHCJAuL3b-nakdlp8FWwneiLcKW15jiAkCWUQe0_Ag$


 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

TENTH ORDER OF BUSINESS 

Agenda Page 84



 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

10A 

Agenda Page 85



RESOLUTION 2024-__ 
 

A RESOLUTION OF THE BOARD OF SUPERVISORS OF THE QUARRY 
COMMUNITY DEVELOPMENT DISTRICT TO DESIGNATE DATE, TIME AND 
PLACE OF PUBLIC HEARING AND AUTHORIZATION TO PUBLISH NOTICE OF 
SUCH HEARING FOR THE PURPOSE OF ADOPTING STORMWATER 
MANAGEMENT RULES AND PROCEDURES; AND PROVIDING AN EFFECTIVE 
DATE 

 
WHEREAS, the Quarry Community Development District (the “District”) is a local unit of 

special-purpose government created and existing pursuant to Chapter 190, Florida Statutes, 
being situated entirely within Collier County, Florida; and  
 

WHEREAS, the Board of Supervisors of the District (the “Board”) is authorized by Section 
190.011(5), Florida Statutes, to adopt rules and orders pursuant to Chapter 120, Florida Statutes. 
 

NOW, THEREFORE, BE IT RESOLVED BY THE BOARD OF SUPERVISORS OF 
THE QUARRY COMMUNITY DEVELOPMENT DISTRICT: 

 
SECTION 1.  A Public Hearing will be held to adopt the Stormwater Management Rules and 

Polices for The Quarry Community Development District, a copy of which is attached hereto as 
Exhibit A, on ______ __, 2024, at _:___ _.m., at Quarry Golf Club, 8950 Weathered Stone Drive, 
Naples, Florida 34120. 
 

SECTION 2.   The District Secretary is directed to publish notice of the hearing in accordance 
with Section 120.54, Florida Statutes. 

 
SECTION 3.  This Resolution shall become effective immediately upon its adoption. 

 
PASSED AND ADOPTED this 11th day of March 2024. 

 
ATTEST:      

 QUARRY COMMUNITY 
DEVELOPMENT DISTRICT 

 
 
_______________________________  _________________________________ 
Secretary / Assistant Secretary   Chairperson, Board of Supervisors 
 
 

Agenda Page 86



1 
 

STORMWATER MANAGEMENT  
RULES AND POLICIES  

FOR  
THE QUARRY COMMUNITY DEVELOPMENT DISTRICT 

Section 1. Short Title, Authority and Applicability 

a. This document shall be known and may be cited as the “Stormwater Management 
Rules and Policies for The Quarry Community Development District”. 

b. The Board of Supervisors (the “Board”) of The Quarry Community Development 
District (the “District”) has the authority to adopt rules and policies pursuant to Chapter 190 of the 
Florida Statutes, as amended. 

c. These rules and policies shall be applicable to all those property owners, 
community and condominium associations, persons or entities who are served by, or are utilizing, 
the master stormwater management system operated by the District. 

d. It is intended that these Rules will be administered in conjunction with the Gutter, 
Downspout, and Drainage StandardsArchitectural Design Standards (“Standards”) published and 
enforced by the Modification Committee of the Quarry Community Association, as may be 
amended from time to time. The Standards have been developed jointly by the Quarry Community 
Association (“Association”) and the District to meet both the aesthetic needs of the Association as 
well as the functional needs required by the District to significantly limit erosion and washout to 
lake banks which may affect the proper operation of the Master Stormwater System (defined 
herein).  A copy of the Standards may be obtained on the District’s website at quarrycdd.orgfrom 
the Association at __________________. 

Section 2. Background, Intent, Findings and Purpose 

a. The District was created pursuant to the provisions of Chapter 190, Florida Statutes 
and was established to provide for ownership, operation, maintenance, and provision of various 
public improvements, facilities and services within its jurisdiction. The purpose of these rules and 
policies (individually, each a “Rule” and collectively, the “Rules”) is to describe the various 
policies of the District relating to stormwater management. 

b. Definitions located within any section of the Rules shall be applicable within all 
other sections, unless specifically stated to the contrary. 

c. A Rule of the District shall be effective upon adoption by affirmative vote of the 
Board. After a Rule becomes effective, it may be repealed or amended only through the rulemaking 
procedures specified in these Rules. Notwithstanding, the District may immediately suspend the 
application of a Rule if the District determines that the Rule conflicts with Florida law. In the event 
that a Rule conflicts with Florida law and its application has not been suspended by the District, 
such Rule should be interpreted in the manner that best effectuates the intent of the Rule while also 

Agenda Page 87



2 
 

complying with Florida law. If the intent of the Rule absolutely cannot be effectuated while 
complying with Florida law, the Rule shall be automatically suspended. 

d. The District is the operating entity responsible for the long-term operation and 
maintenance of the master stormwater management system servicing the property located within 
the boundaries of the District (the “Master Stormwater System”). The District owns certain real 
property and other improvements which comprise the Master Stormwater System. Stormwater 
lakes, ponds, control structures, lake interconnect piping, littoral plantings and natural wetlands 
are all integral parts of the Master Stormwater System. The owners and residents of real property 
within the District play an integral part in keeping the Master Stormwater System functioning 
properly. The failure of all or a portion of the Master Stormwater System due to improper actions 
of third-parties could result in significant damage or harm to real property, personal property, 
and/or homes within the District. 

e. The Master Stormwater System is permitted through South Florida Water 
Management District (“SFWMD”) and Collier County, and the regulations of such governmental 
bodies control the design, operation and use of the Master Stormwater System. Notwithstanding the 
same, consistent with the regulations of such entities there are certain practices and actions that can 
be controlled to enhance the effectiveness of the Master Stormwater System and improve the overall 
function and aesthetic value of the Master Stormwater System. 

f. Runoff from normal rain events, tropical storms, and hurricanes originating from 
impervious surfaces such as roofs, gutters, and downspouts, may cause significant lake bank erosion 
and washouts throughout the District and may otherwise affect the proper operation of the Master 
Stormwater System. Based upon the District’s prior experiences, undertaking corrective action for 
such events may result in the District expending significant sums of money to restore the Master 
Stormwater System (including lake banks) to maintain compliance with applicable permits and 
ensure public safety. These Rules are intended to establish rules and policies relating to the 
installation and use of gutters and downspouts and other forms of drainage on privately owned 
property within the District (“Lot Outfall Improvements”) which are discharging via overland flow 
or directly into the District’s lakes and wetlands. These Rules serve three goals: (1) reducing and/or 
spreading out the volume of water flowing from an owner’s property toward the lakes and wetlands 
within the District; (2) reducing the velocity of water flowing from an owner’s property toward the 
lakes and wetlands; and (3) maintaining compliance with applicable SFWMD and Collier County 
permits and regulations. 

Section 3. Gutters and Downspouts 

a. Installation or Modification of Gutters or Downspouts Generally.  

i. Drainage patterns for each property within the District shall be consistent 
with the approved SFWMD permit for the subject property. In the event the drainage pattern, 
direction or outfall from a particular property is proposed to be altered or is currently inconsistent 
with the approved SFWMD permit and all appurtenant permit modifications, then a modification to 
the applicable SFWMD permit may be required. All permitted cross sections and grade elevations 

Agenda Page 88



3 
 

shall be maintained in accordance withper the SFWMD permit unless and until a modification is 
approved. 

ii. The installation or modification of Lot Outfall Improvements on a home, 
condominium building or other structure (“Structure”) within the District shall be subject to the 
rules set forth herein and also subject to the Standards.  

iii. In Any Lot Outfall Improvements on property adjacent to a District surface 
water retention pond/lake shall be designed such that all storm water runoff emanating from the 
Lot Outfall Improvements will be collected and routed to pipes, collection boxes, and other 
drainage improvements located on District Property (“District Outfall Improvements,” and 
together with the Lot Outfall Improvements the “Outfall Improvements”) by a method consistent 
with the Standards and applicable permitting as deemed necessary by the District, as set forth in 
more detail in subsection (iv) below. order to prevent erosion and washouts upon the banks and 
shorelines of the District’s surface water retention ponds/lakes, caused by storm water runoff 
emanating from gutter and downspout discharge, or runoff from any impervious structure such as 
but not limited to, roof-tops, driveways, patios, or outbuildings, any Lot Outfall Improvements on 
property that is adjacent to a surface water retention pond/lake that may potentially require a 
drainage connection system to collect and properly discharge storm water runoff to avoid erosion 
and washouts, as deemed necessary by the District, as set forth in more detail in subsection (iv) 
below, shall be designed such that all water runoff will be collected and routed to pipes, collection 
boxes and other drainage improvements located on District Property (“District Outfall 
Improvements,” and together with the Lot Outfall Improvements the “Outfall Improvements”) by 
a method consistent with the Standards and applicable permitting. Attached hereto and made a part 
hereof as “Exhibit A” are example concepts showing various methods within the District of 
collecting stormwater runoff and illustrating the intrusion of the Outfall Improvements into the 
adjacent lake to discharge the stormwater. As reflected in each of the attached examples, all 
outfalls from the Outfall Improvements into the lake shall be installed below the control elevation 
of the lake. All drainage design plans for Outfall Improvements are to be consistent and compliant 
with existing permits, rules and regulations. As the District is the owner of the adjacent lake 
property, no intrusion of Outfall Improvements into a lake shall be permitted without the prior 
review and approval of the District. Further, each example of Outfall Improvements has a defined 
connection point (the “Connection Point”) to delineate the separation of maintenance 
responsibility of the District and the ownerAssociation. While the District will be responsible for 
the inspection of all Outfall Improvements, tThe District will be responsible for maintenance of 
only the improvements below the Connection Point and the owner Association will be responsible 
for maintenance of improvements above the Connection Point.   

iv. The District shall periodically identify properties within its boundary 
(“Drainage Properties”) on which the installation and/or modification of Lot Outfall Improvements 
or connections to District Outfall Improvements are determined to be necessary in order to 
significantly limit washouts and erosion to lake banks which may affect the proper operation of 
the Master Stormwater System.  The Drainage Properties shall be identified by the District 
Engineer with the approval of the District’s Board of Supervisors.  The District Manager shall 
maintain records identifying the location of the Drainage Properties.  The Association has agreed 
to use all due diligence and enforcement mechanisms at its disposal in order to facilitate the 

Formatted: Not Highlight

Agenda Page 89



4 
 

District’s installation and or modification of Lot Outfall Improvements on the Drainage Properties.  
The District shall pay for the costs to initially install and/or initially modify the Lot Outfall 
Improvements on the Drainage Properties, however, thereafter the owners of the Drainage 
PropertiesAssociation will be responsible for maintenance of the Lot Outfall Improvements above 
the Connection Point.      
 

b. Homes and Buildings Identified as Drainage Properties.  
 

i. Compliant Existing Lot Outfall Improvements. If a Structure on a Drainage Property 
has existing Lot Outfall Improvements which meet the Standards and these Rules and if District 
Outfall Improvements have already been permitted and installed adjacent to the Drainage Property, 
the District shall coordinate with the Association to ensure that the existing Lot Outfall 
Improvements are connected to the District Outfall Improvements. The District will review whether 
any additional permitting through SFWMD and/or Collier County is required to connect the existing 
Lot Outfall Improvements to the District Outfall Improvements. If additional permitting is required, 
then the District shall be responsible for the cost and expense of any additional planning, design, 
engineering and permitting required for the connection. The District shall be responsible for all 
costs and expenses relating to the connection to the existing Lot Outfall Improvements. The District 
shall enter into a temporary license agreement in substantially the form attached hereto as “Exhibit 
B” (the “License Agreement”) with the owners of the Drainage Properties to allow for access to the 
property in order to connect the existing Lot Outfall Improvements to the District Outfall 
Improvements. Once the connection is made, the District shall be responsible for maintenance of 
only improvements below the Connection Point and the Property Owner (or the property owner’s 
successor in title)Association will be responsible for maintenance of improvements above the 
Connection Point. The Property OwnerAssociation is advised that routine maintenance is 
necessary and required to prevent clogging of the drain lines, which could potentially result in a 
back-up of water and damage to the property or the Structure on the property. The District shall 
not be responsible for any damage caused by any lack of maintenance including, without 
limitation, damage caused by back-ups or clogs in such lines. 

 
ii. No Compliant Lot Outfall Improvements or No Lot Outfall Improvements. If a 

Structure on a Drainage Property has Lot Outfall Improvements that  do not meet the Standards and 
these Rules or if there are no existing Lot Outfall Improvements on the property, the District shall 
coordinate with the Association to install all necessary Lot Outfall Improvements (including District 
Outfall Improvements draining directly into a lake) which meet the Standards and these Rules. The 
District will review whether any additional permitting through SFWMD and/or Collier County is 
required for the installation of all improvements. If additional permitting is required, then the District 
shall be solely responsible for the cost and expense of any additional planning, design, engineering 
and permitting required for the installation of the improvements. The District shall be solely 
responsible for all costs and expenses relating to the installation of any Outfall Improvements in 
accordance with this paragraph. All work shall be performed and completed consistent with 
applicable permits and approvals. The District shall enter into a License Agreement with the owners 
of the Drainage Property to allow for access to the property in order to install the Lot Outfall 
Improvements. Once the installation of the Lot Outfall Improvements is complete, the District shall 
be responsible for maintenance of only improvements below the Connection Point and the Property 
Owner (or the Property Owner’s successor in title)Association will be responsible for maintenance of 

Agenda Page 90



5 
 

improvements above the Connection Point. The Property Owner is advised that routine maintenance 
is necessary and required to prevent clogging of the drain lines, which could potentially result in a 
back-up of water and damage to the Property Owner’s property or the Structure on the property. The 
District shall not be responsible for any damage caused by any lack of maintenance including, without 
limitation, damage caused by back-ups or clogs in such lines. 

 
c. Homes and Buildings Not Identified as Drainage Properties  
 
i. Homes and Buildings Desiring Lot Outfall Improvements Not Identified as Drainage 

Properties. The District shall not be responsible for the costs and expenses associated with any Lot 
Outfall Improvements made on properties which have not been designated as Drainage Properties. If 
a Property Owner is required by the Association to install any improvements necessary to bring the 
Structure in compliance with the Standards, or if a Property Owner wishes to install said 
improvements on their own accord, the Property Owner shall be responsible for any costs associated 
with the improvements. This includes any cost and expense of any additional planning, design, 
engineering and permitting required for the installation.  Furthermore, said improvements must be 
approved, in writing, by the Association and the District.  If the Lot Outfall Improvements include a 
direct connection to a previously installed District Outfall Improvement, the District will be 
responsible for maintenance of only improvements below the Connection Point and the Property 
Owner (or the Property Owner’s successor in title)Association will be responsible for maintenance of 
improvements above the Connection Point. The Property Owner is advised that routine maintenance 
is necessary and required to prevent clogging of the drain lines, which could potentially result in a 
back-up of water and damage to the Property Owner’s property or the Structure on the property. The 
District shall not be responsible for any damage caused by any lack of maintenance including, without 
limitation, damage caused by back-ups or clogs in such lines. 

Section 4. Compliance with Laws 

All property owners, community and condominium associations, persons or entities who 
are served by, or are utilizing, the Master Stormwater System shall, in addition to these Rules, be 
obligated to comply with all applicable federal, state, and local laws and regulations including, 
without limitation, all permits issued by SFWMD for the operation and use of the Master 
Stormwater System. 

Section 5. Enforcement 

The District shall have any and all rights available under the Act and Florida law to enforce 
the provisions of these Rules. The District’s staff including, without limitation, the District Manager 
shall have the authority to act on behalf of the District with respect to the enforcement of these Rules 
including, without limitation, taking any actions necessary to the enforcement and/or prosecution of 
violations of these Rules consistent with Florida law. In addition to, and not as a limitation on the 
District, the District shall have the right to notify SFWMD, Collier County or any other appropriate 
regulatory body of a violation of these Rules or any existing permits issued by any such regulatory 
body. 

Section 6. Effective Date 

Agenda Page 91



6 
 

 
These Rules shall be effective upon their adoption. 

 
 
Exhibit A – Stormwater Collection Illustrations 
Exhibit B – License Agreement 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

Exhibit A 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

Agenda Page 92



7 
 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

Exhibit B 

Agenda Page 93



1 
 

AGREEMENT BETWEEN QUARRY COMMUNITY DEVELOPMENT DISTRICT AND 
QUARRY COMMUNITY ASSOCIATION, INC REGARDING THE DIVISION OF 

RESPONSIBILITIES FOR SURFACE WATER DRAINAGE IMPROVEMENTS 
 

 THIS AGREEMENT  (the “Agreement”) is made and entered into this ___ day of 
_______________, 20243 by and between: 
 

QUARRY COMMUNITY DEVELOPMENT DISTRICT, a local unit of special-purpose 
government established pursuant to Chapter 190, Florida Statutes, being situated 
in Collier County, Florida, with a mailing address of 210 North University Drive, 
Suite 702, Coral Springs, Florida 33071 (the “District”); and 
 
QUARRY COMMUNITY ASSOCIATION, INC., a Florida not-for-profit corporation, 
whose address is 8975 Kayak Drive, Naples, FL 34120 (the “Association,” and 
together with the District, the “Parties”). 

 
RECITALS 

 
 WHEREAS, the District is a local unit of special-purpose government established to 
finance, fund, plan, establish, acquire, construct or reconstruct, enlarge and extend, equip, 
operate and maintain systems, facilities and infrastructure in conjunction with the development 
of the lands within its boundaries; and 
 
 WHEREAS, the District has constructed and/or acquired, certain stormwater management 
facilities, including stormwater lakes, ponds (including seawall & rip-rap shoreline protection), 
storm inlets, drains, pipes, water quality swales, weirs, and other water control structures, lake 
interconnect piping, littoral plantings and natural wetlands (collectively the “Master Stormwater 
System”); and 

 
WHEREAS, the District is obligated to operate and maintain these assets for the purpose 

of satisfying South Florida Water Management District (“SFWMD”) permitting requirements, 
and satisfying obligations under the District’s bond indentures to reasonably maintain assets 
funded with tax-exempt bond proceeds; and.   
 
 WHEREAS, runoff from normal rain events, tropical storms and hurricanes originating 
from impervious surfaces such as roofs, gutters, and downspouts as well as drainage from other 
sources such as pools and dry-wells may cause significant lake bank erosion and washouts 
throughout the District and may otherwise affect the proper operation of the Master Stormwater 
System; and 
 
 WHEREAS, the owners and residents of real property within the District play an integral 
part in keeping the Master Stormwater System functioning properly and the failure of all or a 
portion of the Master Stormwater System due to improper actions of third-parties could result in 
significant damage or harm to real property, personal property and/or homes within the District; 
and 
 

Agenda Page 94



2 
 

 WHEREAS, the Association is a Florida not-for-profit corporation which sets standards 
for improvements including, but not limited to, gutters, downspouts and drainage on properties 
within the District through the Association’s Modification Committee; and  

  
WHEREAS, the District seeks to coordinate with the Association to ensure that gutters, 

downspouts, and/or other forms of drainage on properties within the district (“Lot Outfall 
Improvements”) are installed in a manner which meets all permitting requirements and also 
meets both District and Association standards to help prevent erosion, washouts, or other damage 
to the Master Stormwater System  lake banks within the district; and    

 
WHEREAS, in connection with the District’s oversight and management of the Master 

Stormwater System, the District adopted those certain “Stormwater Management Rules and 
Policies for the Quarry Community Development District” (the “District Rules”); and 
  
 WHEREAS, the District and the Association desire to define their respective obligations 
relative to this issue; and 
 
 NOW, THEREFORE, in consideration of the recitals, agreements and covenants contained 
herein, and other good and valuable consideration, the receipt and sufficiency of which are 
hereby acknowledged, the Parties agree as follows: 
 
 SECTION 1. RECITALS.  The recitals so stated are true and correct and by this reference 
are incorporated into and form a material part of this Agreement. 
 

SECTION 2. DISTRICT OBLIGATIONS. The District shall identify properties within its 
boundary (“Drainage Properties”) on which the installation of Lot Outfall Improvements are 
necessary in order to significantly limit washouts and erosion to lake banks which may affect the 
proper operation of the Master Stormwater System. The District shall pay for the materials and 
installation for Lot Outfall Improvements on Drainage Properties.. The District shall enter into a 
temporary license agreement with the owners of the Drainage Properties to allow for access to 
the property in order to install the Lot Outfall Improvements. The District shall be responsible 
for only the initial installation and on-going inspection of the Lot Outfall Improvements, but and 
shall not be responsible for the maintenance of the Lot Outfall Improvements after initial 
installation. Specifically, for Lot Outfall Improvements which drain directly into the Master 
Stormwater System through a District constructed connection point, owners of Drainage 
Propertiesthe Association shall be responsible for maintenance of the Lot Improvement above 
the connection point. 

 
The District shall additionally be responsible for ensuring that  alterations to the drainage 

patterns for Drainage Properties caused by the installation of Lot Outfall Improvements  are 
consistent with the approved South Florida Water Management District permit for the subject 
property. In the event the drainage pattern, direction or outfall from a particular Drainage 
Property is proposed to be altered by the District in a way which requires a SFWMD permit 
modification, the District shall coordinate with the SFWMD to obtain the necessary permit 
modifications.     

 
SECTION 3. ASSOCIATION OBLIGATIONS.    

Agenda Page 95



3 
 

 
A. Development of Gutter, Downspout, and Drainage Standards. The Association shall 

work with the District in developinghas approved a set of standards, to be titled “Gutter, 
Downspout, and DrainageArchitectural Design Standards,” which, in part address for Lot 
Outfall Improvements which seek to meet both the aesthetic needs of the Association as 
well as the functional needs required by the District to significantly limit erosion and 
washout to lake banks which may affect the proper operation of the Master Stormwater 
System. The Association agrees to adopt these standards once developed and employ 
them Architectural Design Standards through its Modification Committee.     
 

B. Facilitation of Installation of Lot Outfall Improvements  on Drainage Properties.  The 
Association shall use all due diligence and enforcement mechanisms at its disposal in 
order to facilitate the District’s installation of the Lot Outfall Improvements on the 
Drainage Properties.      
 

C. Installation of Lot Outfall Improvements on Properties Not Identified as Necessary by the 
District. For any lot that has not been identified as a Drainage Property where a property 
owner desires to install Lot Outfall Improvements, the Association shall require such 
property owners to obtain the District’s written approval and install the Lot Outfall 
Improvements in accordance with the Architectural Design Sstandards and the District 
Rules. developed by the District and the Association. The property owner shall be 
responsible for the installation and maintenance of improvements made in accordance 
with this subsection. 
 

D. Maintenance of Lot Improvements. The Association shall be responsible for the 
maintenance ofuse all due diligence and enforcement mechanisms at its disposal to 
obligate property owners to maintain Lot Outfall Improvements installed on a property 
owner’s on their property, provided however, that the District shall be responsible for the 
maintenance of improvements located below the connection point to the Master 
Stormwater System.    

   
 SECTION 4. COMPENSATION.  The District shall pay the Association the sum of Ten 
Dollars ($10.00) per year for the provision of the services to be performed by the Association 
pursuant to the terms of this Agreement.  
 
 SECTION 5. TERM.  The term of this Agreement is for a period of twenty (20) years 
commencing on the Effective Date (the “Initial Term”) and shall be automatically renewed for 
additional ten (10) year periods, unless either party provides at least ninety (90) days written 
notice of its intent not to renew.  The District shall have the right to terminate this Agreement 
effective immediately at any time due to the Association’s failure to perform in accordance with 
the terms of this Agreement, or upon thirty (30) days written notice without a showing of cause.  
The Association shall have the right, after the expiration of the Initial Term to terminate this 
Agreement upon thirty (30) days written notice without a showing of cause provided such notice 
shall be provided prior to May 1 of any calendar year after the expiration of the Initial Term.   
 

Agenda Page 96



4 
 

 SECTION 6. PRE-SUIT MEDIATION; RECOVERY OF COSTS AND FEES.  Prior to filing 
any action to enforce this Agreement, the Parties shall mediate the dispute with a Florida 
licensed mediator unless the Parties agree to waive mediation.  Each Party shall be responsible 
for half of the mediator’s fee.  In the event that either party is required to enforce this Agreement 
by court proceedings or otherwise, then the Parties agree that the substantially prevailing party 
shall be entitled to recover from the other all fees and costs incurred, including reasonable 
attorney’s fees, paralegal fees and expert witness fees and costs for trial, alternative dispute 
resolution, or appellate proceedings. 
 
 SECTION 7. LIMITATIONS ON GOVERNMENTAL LIABILITY. Nothing in this Agreement 
shall be deemed as a waiver of immunity or limits of liability of the District beyond any statutory 
limited waiver of immunity or limits of liability which may have been adopted by the Florida 
Legislature in Section 768.28, Florida Statutes, or other statute, and nothing in this Agreement 
shall inure to the benefit of any third party for the purpose of allowing any claim which would 
otherwise be barred under the Doctrine of Sovereign Immunity or by operation of law.  
 
 SECTION 8. ASSIGNMENT.  Neither the District nor the Association may assign this 
Agreement without the prior written approval of the other. 
  
 SECTION 9. HEADINGS FOR CONVENIENCE ONLY.  The descriptive headings in this 
Agreement are for convenience only and shall neither control nor affect the meaning or 
construction of any of the provisions of this Agreement. 
 
 SECTION 10. AGREEMENT.  This instrument shall constitute the final and complete 
expression of this Agreement between the District and the Association relating to the subject 
matter of this Agreement. 
 
 SECTION 11. AMENDMENTS.  Amendments to and waivers of the provisions contained 
in this Agreement may be made only by an instrument in writing which is executed by both the 
District and the Association. 
 
 SECTION 12. AUTHORIZATION.  The execution of this Agreement has been duly 
authorized by the appropriate body or official of the District and the Association, both the 
District and the Association have complied with all the requirements of law, and both the District 
and the Association have full power and authority to comply with the terms and provisions of 
this instrument. 
 
 SECTION 13. NOTICES.  All notices, requests, consents and other communications under 
this Agreement (“Notices”) shall be in writing and shall be delivered, mailed by First Class Mail, 
postage prepaid, or overnight delivery service, to the parties, as follows: 
 

A. If to the District:  Quarry Community Development District 
      210 North University Drive  

Suite 702 
Coral Springs, Florida 33071  

      Attn:  District Manager 

Agenda Page 97



5 
 

  
  With a copy to:  Kutak Rock LLP 
      PO Box 10230 
      Tallahassee, Florida 32302 

Attn: Wesley S. Haber  
 
 B. If to the Association:  Quarry Community Association, Inc. 
      8975 Kayak Drive 
      Naples, FL 34120  
 
       
 
  With a copy to:  __________________ 
      __________________ 
      __________________ 

Attn: _____________  
 
 Except as otherwise provided in this Agreement, any Notice shall be deemed received 
only upon actual delivery at the address set forth above.  Notices delivered after 5:00 p.m. (at the 
place of delivery) or on a non-business day, shall be deemed received on the next business day.  
If any time for giving Notice contained in this Agreement would otherwise expire on a non-
business day, the Notice period shall be extended to the next succeeding business day.  
Saturdays, Sundays, and legal holidays recognized by the United States government shall not be 
regarded as business days.  Counsel for the District and counsel for the Association may deliver 
Notice on behalf of the District and the Association.  Any party or other person to whom Notices 
are to be sent or copied may notify the other parties and addressees of any change in name or 
address to which Notices shall be sent by providing the same on five (5) days written notice to 
the parties and addressees set forth herein. 
 
 SECTION 14. NO THIRD PARTY BENEFICIARIES.  This Agreement is solely for the 
benefit of the District and the Association and no right or cause of action shall accrue upon or by 
reason, to or for the benefit of any third party not a formal party to this Agreement.  Nothing in 
this Agreement expressed or implied is intended or shall be construed to confer upon any person 
or corporation other than the District and the Association any right, remedy, or claim under or by 
reason of this Agreement or any of the provisions or conditions of this Agreement; and all of the 
provisions, representations, covenants, and conditions contained in this Agreement shall inure to 
the sole benefit of and shall be binding upon the District and the Association and their respective 
representatives, successors, and assigns. 
 
 SECTION 15. CONTROLLING LAW; VENUE.  This Agreement and the provisions 
contained in this Agreement shall be construed, interpreted, and controlled according to the laws 
of the State of Florida.  Venue shall be in Collier County, Florida. 
 
 SECTION 16. PUBLIC RECORDS.  The Association understands and agrees that all 
documents of any kind provided to the District in connection with this Agreement may be public 
records and shall be treated as such in accordance with Florida law. 

Agenda Page 98



6 
 

 
 SECTION 17. SEVERABILITY.  The invalidity or unenforceability of any one or more 
provisions of this Agreement shall not affect the validity or enforceability of the remaining 
portions of this Agreement, or any part of this Agreement not held to be invalid or 
unenforceable. 
 
 SECTION 18. ARM’S LENGTH TRANSACTION.  This Agreement has been negotiated 
fully between the District and the Association as an arm’s length transaction.  The District and 
the Association participated fully in the preparation of this Agreement with the assistance of their 
respective counsel.  In the case of a dispute concerning the interpretation of any provision of this 
Agreement, the Parties are each deemed to have drafted, chosen, and selected the language, and 
any doubtful language will not be interpreted or construed against any party. 
 
 SECTION 19. COUNTERPARTS.  This Agreement may be executed in any number of 
counterparts, each of which shall be deemed to be an original, and all such counterparts shall 
constitute one agreement. The delivery of counterpart signatures by e-mail or facsimile 
transmission shall have the same force and effect as the delivery of a signed hard copy. 
 
 IN WITNESS WHEREOF, the Parties execute this Agreement the day and year first written 
above. 
          
ATTEST:      QUARRY COMMUNITY 

DEVELOPMENT DISTRICT 
 
 
 
 
             
Secretary      Chairman, Board of Supervisors 
       

 
      QUARRY COMMUNITY 

ASSOCIATION, INC. 
 
 
 
             
Name:       By:      
       Its:      
 

Agenda Page 99


	Cover Page: Quarry CDD 03-11-24 Meeting
	Quarry 03-11-24 Agenda
	5th Order of Business
	5A
	Thel Thomas Whitley, Jr. Resume
	5C
	Resolution 2024-01, Appointing Officers of the District
	6th Order of Business
	6A
	02-12-24 Minutes
	6B
	01-31-24 Financial Report
	6Ci
	CES Proposal for Preserve Signs
	7th Order of Business
	7D
	9059 Graphite Circle Variance Application
	7E
	9405 Copper Canyon Court Pool Application Review
	7G
	Email Re: US Bank Completion Certificate
	10th Order of Business
	10A
	Resolution for Stormwater Management Rules and Procedures
	Redlined Stormwater Management Rules and Policies
	Redlined Agreement with HOA



